
Lancashire County Council

Scrutiny Committee

Friday, 22nd July, 2016 at 10.00 am in Cabinet Room 'B' - The Diamond Jubilee 
Room, County Hall, Preston 

Agenda

Part I (Open to Press and Public)

No. Item

1. Apologies  

2. Disclosure of Pecuniary and Non-Interests  
Members are asked to consider any Pecuniary and 
Non-Pecuniary Interests they may have to disclose to 
the meeting in relation to matters under consideration 
on the Agenda.

3. Minutes of the Meeting held on 17 June 2016  (Pages 1 - 8)

4. Transport Asset Management Plan (TAMP) Data 
Refresh June 2016  

(Pages 9 - 44)

5. Highways Performance  (Pages 45 - 50)

6. Response by the Cabinet Member for Environment, 
Planning and Cultural Services to the 
recommendations of the Scrutiny Committee's 
review of Planning Matters  

(Pages 51 - 56)

7. Work Plan and Task Group Update  (Pages 57 - 62)

8. Urgent Business  
An item of urgent business may only be considered 
under this heading where, by reason of special 
circumstances to be recorded in the Minutes, the Chair 
of the meeting is of the opinion that the item should be 
considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency. 
Wherever possible, the Chief Executive should be 
given advance warning of any Member's intention to 
raise a matter under this heading.



9. Date of Next Meeting  
The next meeting of the Scrutiny Committee will be 
held on Friday 23 September at 10:00am at the County 
Hall, Preston.

I Young
Director of Governance, 
Finance and Public Services 

County Hall
Preston



1

Lancashire County Council

Scrutiny Committee

Minutes of the Meeting held on Friday, 17th June, 2016 at 10.00 am in 
Cabinet Room 'B' - The Diamond Jubilee Room, County Hall, Preston

Present:
County Councillor Bill Winlow (Chair)

County Councillors

A Barnes
L Collinge
C Crompton
B Dawson
D O'Toole
Mrs L Oades

J Shedwick
R Shewan
V Taylor
D Watts
D Westley

County Councillor B Dawson replaced Councillor M Parkinson and County 
Councillor D Westley replaced Councillor G Wilkins for this meeting.
A minute silence was observed by the Committee for Jo Cox MP.
1.  Apologies

None were received.

2.  Disclosure of Pecuniary and Non-Interests

None were disclosed

3.  Appointment of Chair and Deputy Chair

Resolved: That the appointment of County Councillor Bill Winlow as Chair of the 
Committee and County Councillor Alyson Barnes as Deputy Chair of the 
Committee for the following municipal year be noted.

4.  Constitution, Membership and Terms of Reference

Resolved: That the Constitution, Membership and Terms of Reference for the 
Committee be noted.

5.  Minutes of the Meetings held on 13 May

a.  Minutes of the Meeting held on 13 May at 10:00am

Resolved: That the minutes of the meeting held on 13 May 2016 at 10:00am be 
confirmed and signed by the Chair.

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



2

b.  Minutes of the meeting held on 13 May at 12:00pm

Resolved: That the minutes of the meeting held on 13 May 2016 at 12:00pm be 
confirmed and signed by the Chair.

6.  Newton Europe Consultants

The Chair welcomed Tony Pounder, Director of Adult Services; Cath Whalley, 
Head of Service Social Care Services; Linda Garnsey, Operations Manager, 
Support Planning and Review; Rachel Meadows, Operational Manager East AIA; 
and Stephen Knight, Newton Europe, to the meeting.

The Committee was provided with a presentation on an overview of how the role 
and remit of Newton Europe was contributing to the transformation of the design 
and delivery of services which would result in improved outcomes for adults. 

Newton Europe had provided technical support to Adult Services as well as 
guidance and input into a major change programme. The programme was called 
Passport to Independence. What was important to note was that this built on the 
knowledge, skills and values of the existing managers and leaders in the 
organisation and staff on the front line.   

Adult Services had secured technical knowledge from Newton Europe that it felt it 
needed to better organise some of the processes, practices and systems. The 
overall approach for this was in three stages:

 Assessment – identifying where the biggest opportunities for improvement 
were. It was noted that Adult Services was not making the best use of 
practitioners' time.

 Design – what were the solutions and how do we know they work. Stage 2 
had begun in February 2016 and would end in August 2016.

 Implementation – rolling out that supported practice transformation across 
the county, locality by locality. The implementation stage would take 12 – 
14 months.

Adult Services staff were playing a central role in driving this forward. A massive 
part of the work was understanding what needed to be changed and this was 
where support from Newton Europe was essential.

In terms of the improvement approach the programme covered Older People 
(OP), Physical Disabilities (PD), Learning Disabilities (LD) and Mental Health 
(MH).

By ensuring citizens and their families were at the centre of social care services 
in Lancashire, Adult Services would empower and equip staff and citizens with 

Page 2



3

the information and tools so they were able to work together to achieve the 
desired outcomes, whilst promoting independence and wellbeing.

Questions and Comments by the Committee in relation to the report were as 
follows:

 Members were pleased to see a transformation taking place.

 The Committee wanted some reassurances regarding occupational 
therapists. It was informed that 17 occupational therapists were currently 
employed but Adult Services had recently appointed a further 20 . This 
would enable concerns about the length of waiting times to be addressed.

 Another appointment had been made to improve relationships with the 
Acute Hospitals Trust

 The Committee felt it was vital for LCC and the Acute Trusts to start 
working together as a joined up service regarding the rehab and respite of 
elderly people. It was informed that the Adult Services Team was currently 
in the process of meeting with colleagues.

  Regarding assessment capability, Members were informed in terms of 
integrated working there were practitioners in hospitals, social workers, 
and discharge coordinators who were traditionally nurses employed by the 
NHS. They had access to the services Adult Services provided. Regarding 
people's capability, Adult Services had to be confident that all the 
practitioners who had access to commissioning services were properly 
assessing and making decisions based on what someone's level of ability 
and strength was.

 In terms of the Better Care Fund (BCF), Members were informed that in 
Lancashire this was £91m. Around £26m of the fund protected Social Care 
Services.

 The Committee pointed out that Fylde and Wyre had the highest level of 
elderly people within Lancashire and therefore felt that because the 
Customer Access Service was based in East Lancashire, the trials and 
sandboxes undertaken in that area were giving an unbalanced view 
because the higher majority was in Fylde in Wyre and that the figures from 
the analysis might be misleading. It was informed that there were pros and 
cons for all areas of Lancashire and a large amount of work had been 
done by LCC's finance and information colleagues. There was a lot of data 
analysis, benchmarking and understanding of demographics going on in 
the background to make sure results and figures reflected the population 
of the county.

Page 3



4

 Concerns were raised with regards to people coming home from care who 
lived in properties owned by Registered Social Landlords (RSLs). 
Members enquired if these properties were adequate and had been 
adapted for these people, and did Adult Services have links with RSLs 
about adapted properties. They were informed that Adult Services worked 
closely with District Councils, the Housing Associations and RSLs 
regarding which properties had been adapted. If a home was unsuitable, a 
short term care arrangement could be put in place.

 It was vital to ask frontline workers their views. The structural issues were 
secondary, as the key issues were how did Adult Services get better 
processes, better practices, better support for frontline workers and better 
management.

 It was noted that the main problems and pressures that Health and mainly 
hospitals faced were addressing services for the elderly. It was important 
to get the staffing numbers proportionate to the demand being faced and 
comparative studies were taking place in the county. In terms of 
commissioning services, it was also important to make sure the amount of 
work commissioned was proportionate to the needs in different areas.

 Concerns were raised over lack of communication between Adult Services 
and its customers.

 The Committee requested the numbers of sandbox Clinical Assessment 
Service (CAS) to Screening Initial Assessment Service (SIAS) referrals, 
and non-sandbox CAS to SIAS referrals.

 The main focus of commissioners is to make sure that, with the providers 
of home care, was that Adult Services were delivering consistently. One of 
the major issues in homecare delivery was the number of home carers 
who were visiting people. It was vital to get a smaller group of carers 
staying with the people over a longer period of time. The Committee felt 
this was an important issue and was interested in the future to see how 
this service delivery was progressing and was being dealt with.

 Members were informed that 60 more social workers had been recruited 
with a further 25 still to be recruited. These extra staff were not yet post.. 
In the long term Adult Services needed to consider how to support a range 
of activities to the extent that maximised its productivity. Members 
requested periodical reports on this.

  The Committee acknowledged the good news of the recruitment of extra 
occupational therapists and the increase in the number of social workers.

Page 4



5

 Members enquired how much more work was being done with home 
improvement agencies as they were crucial to the work Adult Services did 
and were informed that close relationships were developing.

 The Committee was informed that the ideal caseload for a practitioner was 
around 20. Practitioners had stated themselves that this was an ideal 
number.

 Members also expressed concerns about the effectiveness of Liquid Logic 
in assisting with service delivery and requested that further detail be 
provided

A copy of the presentation is appended to these minutes

Resolved: That

1. The report be noted

2. The Committee receive periodical updates on how the recruitment of 
additional social workers was easing waiting times and how Adult Services 
was maximising its productivity.

3. The Committee receive data for sandbox Clinical Assessment Service 
(CAS) to Screening Initial Assessment (SIAS) referrals and non-sandbox 
CAS to SIAS referrals.

4. The Committee receive information on the current position of Liquid Logic 
and future plans in relation to improving service delivery

7.  Strategic Economic Plan

The Chair welcomed Martin Kelly, Director of Economic Development, to the 
table. A presentation was given providing the Committee with a progress update 
on the Strategic Economic Plan including key initiatives and programmes. 

The Committee was informed that the LEP had been running properly for 4 years. 
The LEP had developed an investment growth programme valued at nearly £1 
Billion. There were 50 major initiatives planned/underway across all parts of 
Lancashire with key programmes delivering ahead of schedule and exceeding 
delivery targets. Government had a positive view of the LEP's overall 
performance. The LEP recognised the need to raise its profile and strengthen 

Page 5



6

communications with local stakeholders. The LEP welcomed the opportunity to 
work with local authorities on developing the Combined Authority and Devolution 
Deal proposals. It viewed the Northern Powerhouse as a positive framework that 
enabled Lancashire to position its economic strengths and forge stronger cross-
boundary linkages. 

Lancashire's LEP was the only one in the country with 4 Enterprise Zones. The 
LEP's Enterprise Zone programme had the potential to create 10,000 new jobs 
with an investor offer of Northern Powerhouse significance.

The LEP had a £20 Million Growing Places loan fund which was on its 9th 
commercial investment with £1 Million committed to secure 450 new jobs with a 
global investor expanding in Preston. Growing Places continued to welcome 
commercially focused investment proposals from public and private sector 
partners.

City Deal was the best performing City Deal in the country. All first year targets of 
the £450 Million City deal programme had been delivered in 2015/16.

Regarding the Growth Deal, Lancashire was one of the few LEPs in the country 
with a 6 year allocation worth around £230 Million. Lancashire was on track after 
year 1.

Transport for Lancashire was doing good work around strategic transport which 
helped make better sense of what was happening across Lancashire.

On the subject of Business Growth and Innovation, the first phase of Boost was 
completed in September 2015, with 3,000 SMEs engaged and 1,000 businesses 
improved across the Lancashire sub-region, with 1,200 new jobs created. Boost 2 
was underway and the County Council was powering much of this.

A lot of work was underway in Skills for Growth in terms of the adult workforce 
and how to make it more productive.

The Government had agreed the European Strategic Investment Funding (ESIF) 
operational programme for England in June 2015. The LEP had successfully 
secured a 100% improvement in Lancashire's Assisted Area coverage. £188 
Million had been allocated to Lancashire's ESIF programme.
Regarding Strategic Marketing and Communications, Members were informed 
there was exciting work in the autumn concerning the LEPs and how Lancashire 
presented itself to the external world.

Northern Powerhouse (NP) started off as a proposal from the Chancellor in 2014. 
NP aimed to close the North of England's performance gaps and rebalance the 
UK economy. It was still early days but the NP approach was ultimately to be 
underpinned by 11 Combined Authorities and 11 LEPs working with the 
Government to develop initiatives of Northern significance that transcend local 
boundaries. At this stage there was very little funding available. Early NP focus 
was on inter-city transport connectivity with the work of Transport for the North.

Page 6



7

There was continued focus from the LEP on productivity and growth challenges. 
Lancashire was still around 25% of the national benchmark

Questions and Comments by the Committee in relation to the report were as 
follows:

 It was noted by Members of the perceived lack of LEP activity in West 
Lancashire. They were informed that through the LEP Skills Capital Fund 
£3 Million had been invested in Edgehill University's new bio facility. It was 
a £12 Million initiative scheme of which £3 Million was provided by the 
LEP.

 Skelmersdale was pointed out as an area which needed help financially. In 
terms of Skelmersdale town centre, Transport for Lancashire, which was 
part of the LEP, was hoping to progress train station proposals, which 
would cost close to £4 Million for the LEP and the County Council.to 
prepare the case making for a new railway station for Skelmersdale.

 The LEP was also in detailed negotiations with the Homes and 
Communities Agency and West Lancashire Borough Council, for looking at 
a new spacial approach for using the 3 motorways surrounding 
Skelmersdale. It was felt there needed to be more investment in transport 
in West Lancashire.

 In terms of the access issues in Fylde and Wyre, as part of Growth Deal 3, 
investment was already planned for the A585. This included 2 further 
junction improvements. This was part of a national competition for funds. 
This was welcomed by Members.

A copy of the presentation is appended to the minutes

Resolved: That the Committee note the update report. 

8.  Urgent Business

There were no items of Urgent Business

9.  Date of Next Meeting

The next meeting of the Scrutiny Committee will take place on Friday 22nd July 
2016 at 10.00 in Cabinet Room B (The Diamond Jubilee Room) at the County 
Hall, Preston.

I Young
Director of Governance, Finance 

Page 7



8

and Public Services

County Hall
Preston

Page 8



Scrutiny Committee
Meeting to be held on Friday, 22 July 2016

Electoral Division affected:
(All Divisions);

Transport Asset Management Plan (TAMP) Data Refresh June 2016
(Appendix A refers)

Contact for further information:
Karen Cassar,  Highways Asset Manager, 
karen.cassar@lancashire.gov.uk

Executive Summary

The TAMP data refresh – June 2016 document attached as Appendix 1 provides an 
update of the changes that have occurred both nationally within the highway sector 
since the original TAMP was approved and locally within Lancashire.  This 
document provides the opportunity to report the latest condition of our assets so that 
our performance over the past 12 months can be measured and scrutinised.

Recommendation

The Scrutiny Committee is asked to note the content of the TAMP data refresh June 
2016 document.

Background and Advice 

The TAMP refresh document is intended to supplement both the original TAMP and 
previous years refresh documents rather than replace them, so that when these 
documents are read together they provide an up to date and ongoing analysis of the 
current condition of our transport assets and detailed information of any new 
pressures we are facing.

Consultations

N/A

Implications: 

This item has the following implications, as indicated:

Risk management

N/A

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
List of Background Papers

Paper Date Contact/Tel

n/a n/a n/a

Reason for inclusion in Part II, if appropriate

N/A

Page 10



Data Refresh - June 2016 

Appendix A

P
age 11



Contents 

Section Description Page 

 Executive Summary 3 

1 Introduction 5 

2 DfT Self-Assessment Questionnaire 5 

3 Changes to Code of Practice Guidance 8 

4 Actions to Address TAMP Weaknesses 8 

5 Revised Asset Condition Data 12 

 A,B & C Roads 13 

 Rural Unclassified Roads 16 

 Residential Unclassified Roads 17 

 Footways 18 

 Bridges and Structures 19 

 Street Lighting 20 

 Traffic Signals 21 

6 Service Standards 22 

7 Conclusion 24 

 Appendix 1  Generic Service Standards 25 

 

P
age 12



 
 
 

Transport Asset Management Plan – Data Refresh June 2015  Page 3 

 

Transport Asset Management Plan – Data Refresh June 2016 

 

Executive Summary 

 

The Transport Asset Management Plan 2015-2030 (TAMP) was 

approved by the Cabinet Member for Highways and Transport on 

10 June 2014 and identifies the key strategic priorities of the 

County Council, as the highway authority for Lancashire, during 

the period 2015/16 to 2029/30. 

 

This document provides an update of the changes that have 

occurred both nationally within the highway sector since the 

original TAMP was approved and locally within Lancashire.  This 

document also provides us with an opportunity to report the latest 

condition of our assets so that our performance over the past 12 

months can be measured and scrutinised. 

 

This data refresh is intended to supplement both the original 

TAMP and previous years refresh documents rather than replace 

them, so that when these documents are read together they 

provide an up to date and ongoing analysis of the current condition 

of our transport assets and detailed information of any new 

pressures we are facing. 

 

In addition, the annual data process enables the County Council 

to include information about those transport assets that were not 

included in the TAMP but for which further information is now 

available or highlight any changes that are proposed for data 

capture as a result of using new technology etc. 

 

Since the last data refresh in June 2015 the Department for 

Transport (DfT) clarified and confirmed details of the 22 questions 

against which that the County Council assessed its performance 

and then placed itself in one of three bands.  As a result of the self-

assessment exercise that took place in January 2016, the County 

Council placed itself in Band 2.  The DfT confirmed that only 

authorities in Bands 2 & 3 would receive their full Incentive Fund 

allocation in 2016/17.  However from 1st April 2017 only authorities 

in Band 3 will receive 100% of their Incentive Fund allocation. 

 

Good progress is now being made to address a number of key 

areas which should enable the County Council to move to Band 3 

next year.  Further details are contained within this refresh 

document. 

 

The good progress made in 2014 provided a firm foundation on 

which to build and has enabled the overall condition of our 

highway and transport assets to improve again from 2.35 to 2.57 

which categorises the condition as being ACCEPTABLE. 

 

P
age 13



 
 
 

Transport Asset Management Plan – Data Refresh June 2015  Page 4 

 

The table below sets out the TAMP Service Standards, the 2013 baseline condition data and the actual 2014 and 2015 condition data. 

 

Asset Category Measure 
Service Standard Asset Condition 

POOR ACCEPTABLE FAIR GOOD EXCELLENT  2013 2014 2015 

A Roads 
% RED & AMBER 

>25% 25% 15% 10% 5% 22.1% 30.37 23.72 

B Roads >40% 40% 20% 15% 5% 42.3% 36.01 28.10 

C Roads >50% 50% 30% 20% 10% 48.7% 38.59 30.62 

Residential 
Unclassified Roads 

% RED & AMBER >50% 50% 30% 20% 10% 48.7% 38.59 30.62 

Rural Unclassified 
Roads 

% RED & AMBER >50% 50% 30% 20% 10% 48.7% 38.59 30.62 

Footways 
Number of defects 
Number of claims 

>50,000 
>600 

50,000-40,000 
500-400 

40,000-15,000 
400-250 

15,000-10,000 
250-150 

<10,000 
<150 

51,395** 
359 

22,171** 
298 

13,533** 
259 

Bridges and Similar 
Structures 

Bridge Condition 
Index (Ave.) 

<40 40-60 60-79 80-90 >90 89.3 89.99 90.19 

Street Lighting 
% of high risk 
installations 

>35% 25-35% 20-25% 10-20% 5-10% 23.15% 17.72%*** 19.99%*** 

Traffic Signals 
% of units beyond 

design life 
>40% 30-40% 20-30 10-20 <10% 33.11% 33.11 30.31 

   * - Interim measure until engineering condition data is available.  Condition in subsequent years will be % RED & AMBER, 
  **- Changes in defect reporting systems in 2014 mean that 2013 data not comparable to 2014 and 2015 data, 
*** - Data cleansing has resulted in some erection dates being adjusted so that service life in line with actual age. Therefore 2013 and 2014 data not 

comparable with 2015 data, 

 

From this it can be seen that: 

 

 Between 2014 and 2016 the average % of RED or AMBER on A roads reduced by 20% (50.33km), B roads reduced by 41.51% 

(91.84km) and C roads reduced by 38.54% (276.57km).  Overall the condition of our A, B & C roads can be regarded as ACCEPTABLE. 

 The overall condition of Footways improved from ACCEPTABLE to GOOD, 

 The overall condition of Bridges and Similar Structures improved from GOOD to EXCELLENT, 

 The overall condition of Street Lighting improved from FAIR to GOOD,  

P
age 14



 
 
 

Transport Asset Management Plan – Data Refresh June 2015  Page 5 

 

1) Introduction 

The Transport Asset Management Plan (TAMP) was approved by 

the Cabinet Member for Highways and Transport on 10 June 2014 

and sets out how the County Council intends to manage its 

transport assets over the 15 year period from 2015/16 to 2029/30. 

 

In order that the TAMP can remain a live and current document it 

is intended to provide annual updates which contain additional 

information to supplement the TAMP.  It is intended that these 

updates will provide a summary of external pressures within the 

highway sector and internal initiatives that will impact of the 

County Councils highway and transport asset network.  This 

update includes information relating to:- 

 

 DfT Self-Assessment Questionnaire, 

 Changes to Codes of Practice Guidance, 

 Actions to address weakness in the TAMP, 

 Revised asset condition data, 

 

2) DfT Self-Assessment Questionnaire 

In order to encourage local authorities to adopt good asset 

management practices across England, the DfT have introduced 

changes to the highway maintenance formula funding mechanism.  

As a result each authority will now be required to undertake a self-

assessment against a set of criteria aimed at assessing 

performance in relation to asset management, resilience, 

customer, benchmarking and efficiency and operational delivery. 

 

Our assessment was validated by the County Council's s151 

officer and submitted to the DfT in January 2016.  As a result of 

this exercise, the County Council assessed itself to be a Band 2 

authority. 

 

Details of the 'incentive bands' and funding % for future years are 

shown below:- 

 

Year Band 1 Band 2 Band 3 

2015/16 100% 100% 100% 

2016/17 90% 100% 100% 

2017/18 60% 90% 100% 

2018/19 30% 70% 100% 

2019/20 10% 50% 100% 

2020/21 10% 30% 100% 

 

Should the County Council not consider itself to a Band 3 authority 

by the time it next self-assesses itself in January 2017 it will only 

receive 90% of its Incentive Fund allocation in 2017/18, which will 

reduce our funding by approximately £65,000. 

 

Given the reductions in highway funding over the past few years it 

is imperative that the authority seeks to achieve a 'Band 3' rating 

as soon as possible.  From the DfT guidance it is vital that local 

authorities have the support of members, senior officers and a 

good quality TAMP in place that is refreshed and updated on a 

regular basis. 

 

P
age 15



 
 
 

Transport Asset Management Plan – Data Refresh June 2015  Page 6 

 

A summary of self-assessment questions, areas covered and our 

scores are shown below:- 

 

 Area Assessed Score 

1 Asset Management Policy and Strategy 3 

2 Communications 2 

3 Performance Management Framework 2 

4 Asset Data Management 2 

5 Lifecycle Planning 2 

6 Leadership and Commitment  2 

7 Competencies and Training 1 

8 Risk Management 2 

 Resilience  

9 Resilient Network 2 

10 Implemented Potholes Review 2 

11 Implemented the Drainage Guidance 2 

 Customer  

12 Satisfaction 2 

13 Feedback 2 

14 Information 2 

 Benchmarking and Efficiency  

15 Benchmarking 2 

16 Efficiency Monitoring 2 
 Operational Service Delivery  

17 Periodic Review of Operational Service Delivery 2 

18 Supply Chain Collaboration 2 

19 Lean Reviews 2 

20 Works Programming  2 

21 Collaborative Working 2 

22 Procuring External Highway Maintenance Services 2 

 

 

The final band is calculated according to the following guidelines:- 

Band 1 Does not reach Level 2 or Level 3 in at least 15 of the 22 
questions 

Band 2 Must reach Level 2 or Level 3 in at least 15 of the 22 
questions. 

Band 3 Must reach Level 3 in at least 18 of the 22 questions 

 

In addition if an authority scores 1 in any or all of questions 1, 2 

and 5, they will automatically be placed in Band 1 overall, 

regardless of their other scores 

 

A summary of LCC's 22 scores is provided below:- 

 

Level 1 1 

Level 2 20 

Level 3 1 

Overall Band 2 

 

As a result the above scores and guidelines the County Council 

assessed itself to be a Band 2 authority 

 

In order that the County Council can consider itself to be a Band 

3 authority it needs to be able to demonstrate improvement in a 

number of key areas, one of which is that asset management 

principles have been embedded across the whole organisation. 

 

In order to achieve this a number of activities have already taken 

place.  The Highways Asset Manager has for example briefed 

members of the Scrutiny Committee on two previous occasions in 

P
age 16



 
 
 

Transport Asset Management Plan – Data Refresh June 2015  Page 7 

 

the past 12 months, once to provide an update on our performance 

in respect of maintaining our Transport Asserts as part of the 

TAMP data refresh process and once to advise on the changes 

and pressures affecting highway maintenance in Lancashire.  The 

Highways Asset Manager has given presentations to various key 

individuals and teams in order to inform them of the changes that 

the County Council needs to make in order that it can improve its 

performance. 

 

In addition, the Highways Asset Manager has established the 

Highways Infrastructure Asset Management Strategy Board 

(HIAMSB) whose membership comprises of Directors and Heads 

of Service from Corporate Commissioning, Community Services, 

Programmes and Project Management, Highways, Design and 

Construction and Highways Asset Management. 

 

The HIAMSB promotes an interpretation of asset management for 

highway infrastructure as: 

 

"A systematic approach to meeting the strategic need for the 

management and maintenance of highway infrastructure 

assets through long term planning and optimal allocation of 

resources in order to manage risk and meet the performance 

requirements of the authority in the most efficient and 

sustainable manner". 

 

The HIAMSB will provide a governance role, monitor performance 

and ensure progress in the strategic direction outlined within the 

TAMP and the Highways Management Plan (HMP).  The Board 

will oversee the annual completion of the Department for 

Transports (DfT) self-assessment questionnaire which determines 

the incentive element of funding for all English highway authorities 

dependent upon their banding.  The banding is achieved by 

answering 22 questions and providing evidence to substantiate 

the banding assumption made by the highway authority 

 

The HIAMSB meet on a regular basis to review various aspects of 

highway asset management and performance to ensure that the 

principles contained in the HMP are implemented consistently 

throughout the organisation. 

 

In addition the Highways Infrastructure Asset Management 

Implementation Group (HIAMIG) has also been formed and 

includes the Highway Asset Manager, Head of Highways, 

Countywide Highway Manager, Countywide Network Manager, 

Countywide Services Manager, Highway Managers, Information, 

Intelligence, Quality and Performance Manager, Street Works, 

Signals, Parking Countywide Manager, Procurement Manager 

and Group Manager (Design and Construction). 

 

The HIAMIG will support the HIAMSB to implement the policies in 

relation to asset management and be responsible for embedding 

and endorsing asset management within their teams and service 

area.  The HIAMIG will provide progress reports to the HIAMSB 

on the progress of implementation of asset management 

P
age 17



 
 
 

Transport Asset Management Plan – Data Refresh June 2015  Page 8 

 

principles within their teams and service area as directed by the 

HIAMSB. 

 

The membership of the HIAMIG monthly meetings will be broken 

down into sub groups in accordance with one of the following 

sections; Asset Management; Resilience; Customer; 

Benchmarking and Efficiency and Operational Delivery.  The 

outcome of these monthly meetings will be reported into the 

Highways Infrastructure Asset Management Strategy Board 

(HIAMSB) which has been formed and who will be responsible for 

monitoring progress.   

 

In April 2016 a number of meetings were held with senior 

members to discuss the outcome of the self-assessment 

questionnaire and to explain why the HIAMSB and HIAMIG had 

been established and what was expected of them going forward. 

 

Senior managers were asked to include a standing agenda item 

entitled 'Asset management and the self-assessment 

questionnaire' or similar on the agenda of management team 

meetings help us to demonstrate that asset management 

principles are embedded throughout the organisation. 

 

They were also advised that it is imperative that an 'activities 

register' is maintained which demonstrates our journey to 

implement the HMEP recommended asset management practices 

as well as a 'lessons learnt' register to demonstrate how we have 

considered and learnt from our practices.  An activity log should 

be completed for each of the 22 questions in the self-assessment. 

 

3) Changes to Codes of Practice Guidance 

Last year it was anticipated that the new Code of Practice 'Well 

Managed Highways' which incorporates and replaces the UK 

Roads Liaison Group national codes of practice entitled 'Well 

Maintained Highways', 'Well-lit Highways' and 'Management of 

Highway Structures' would be published in autumn 2015. 

 

As the new Code moves away from a prescriptive approach in 

favour of one that is more risk based the draft documents are 

currently being considered further by DfT solicitors before they are 

issued as final documents.  Once issued, the County council will 

have two years to fully implement them. 

 

4) Actions to address weakness in the TAMP 

The TAMP sets out in a clear and objective way how the County 

Council intends to manage its transport assets over the next 15 

years.  The TAMP also contains our initial assessments of the 

condition of all the transport assets which need to be updated at 

regular intervals during its 15 year life so that we can monitor our 

progress in achieving the targets set out in the TAMP.  

 

The following explains what we are doing to increase our 

knowledge of the highway and transport asset and improve the 

way we manage these assets. 

 

P
age 18



 
 
 

Transport Asset Management Plan – Data Refresh June 2015  Page 9 

 

a) Asset Condition Data 

When the TAMP was approved in 2014 up-to-date objective 

condition was not available for a number of asset types.  As a 

consequence, alternative data sources, such as defect data, has 

be used on an interim basis in order that we could determine 

service standards and monitor performance. 

 

 Highway Video Surveys 

In order to improve our knowledge of our highways the County 

Council secured the services of Gaist Systems on a three year 

contract to carry out video surveys of the whole highway network. 

 

During the past 12 months the whole of the adopted highway 

network has been subjected to a Gaist video survey which has 

recorded forward, backward, footpath and carriageway facing 

images every 0.5m. 

 

This information has been used to place all parts of the highway 

network into one 5 categories; 

 

Grade 1 – Free from defects, 

Grade 2 – Signs of surface wear, 

Grade 3 – Mid-life, 

Grade 4 – Functionality impaired, 

Grade 5 – Structurally impaired. 

 

The Highways Asset Group are currently examining the survey 

results and will be using this condition data to determine 

appropriate service standards for the rural unclassified and urban 

unclassified road networks.  Once proposals have been 

developed these will be shared with the HIAMSB prior to gaining 

approval from the Cabinet Member for Highways and Transport. 

 

Over the next few months the Highways Asset Group will be 

working very closely with Gaist on lifecycle planning activities.  As 

Gaist software enables condition data to be imported into their 

data modelling software, this can be used to predict and optimise 

maintenance requirements for Lancashire's carriageways.  The 

system also enables dynamic modelling of the lifecycle of the 

individual core ‘parts’ of a highway such as surface course, binder 

course and road base and their interactions.  

 

It is anticipated that these modelling and lifecycle tools will enable 

the County Council to evaluate, using graphical outputs and 

reports, the long term effects of a particular funding scenarios.  

The Gaist system will also enable the County Council to produce 

long-term maintenance scenarios which detail the optimal 

treatment and associated cost to support whole of life 

management of the highways asset. 

 

The software will also enable the County Council for the first time 

to fully evaluate the maintenance backlog across the whole of 

Lancashire's highway network using objective condition data. 

 

 

 

P
age 19



 
 
 

Transport Asset Management Plan – Data Refresh June 2015  Page 10 

 

 Footway Surveys 

Over the past 12 months the County Council has been collecting 

objective condition data relating to all the footways in Lancashire 

using a modified version of the Footway Network Survey (FNS) 

methodology which was developed by the Transport Research 

Laboratory to be a cost effective method of condition data capture 

that could be applied to the whole footway network and be 

repeated frequently enough to support good asset management. 

 

The FNS will result in individual sections of the footway network 

being placed into one of the four categories below, 

 

o Condition Level 1 – As New 

o Condition Level 2 – Aesthetically Impaired 

o Condition Level 3 – Functionally Impaired 

o Condition Level 4 – Structurally Unsound 

 

The rating can change as often as necessary on a particular 

stretch of footway, reflecting variations along its length. This 

information is then summarised for the whole footway as the 

percentage of the footway in each condition level. 

 

In addition to identifying condition, the FNS will also identify the 

types of defects are typically present on the footway which will help 

guide subsequent maintenance choices. 

 

It is anticipated that the FNS will be completed by the end of May, 

following which the Highways Asset Group will examine the survey 

results and use this condition data to determine appropriate 

service standards for the whole of the countywide footway 

network.  Once proposals have been developed these will be 

shared with the HIAMSB prior to gaining approval from the Cabinet 

Member for Highways and Transport. 

 

It is anticipated that the County Council will continue to collect 

defect data and use this to measure performance within the 

revised HMP which is in the process of being revised and updated. 

 

b) Core Systems Review 

In order to drive efficiencies through all parts of our operations we 

intend to make full use of modern technology including the latest 

software programmes and mobile technology.  In order to achieve 

this the County Council has undertaken a review of all its core 

systems, including those used to maintain its highway assets. 

 

As a consequence we are now working towards replacing several 

different legacy ICT systems with one integrated highway asset 

management system which is scheduled to go live in 2016. 

 

It is anticipated that this will drive efficiencies across the County 

Council through the use of an integrated, customer focused 

solution that supports mobile working and end to end business 

processes, which will help boost the on-going, major business 

transformation programme being carried out by the County 

Council.  The shift to digital services and self-service by members 

P
age 20



 
 
 

Transport Asset Management Plan – Data Refresh June 2015  Page 11 

 

of the general public is a key strategy of the County Council and 

lead to back office efficiencies through: 

 

 increased automation for both staff and customer interactions, 

 eliminate double handling and input of data to multiple 

systems, 

 freeing up staff time and other resources, 

 maximise responsiveness and work on the ground through 

the use of mobile technology, 

 the removal of duplication and our reliance on outdated paper 

based systems 

 

The new Highways Asset Management System is an integrated 

solution for the management of infrastructure, including land, 

highways, structures, public lighting, and distribution networks. It 

will allow relevant users to: 

 

 record and map information related to schemes  

 register and maintain assets and manage any defects 

 provide real time information to both internal staff and 

members of the public and drive prioritised asset 

management, 

 

The system also provides a specific solution for the management 

of bridges, retaining walls, culverts, gantries and other similar 

structures.  It will handle cyclic inspections and maintenance, 

including the seasonal variations in activities, through to condition 

projection and strategic asset planning.  It will also make the best 

use of the latest mobile technology for working on site. 

 

The Highways Asset Group in conjunction with others are 

continuing the process of cleansing and rationalising the asset 

inventory to ensure that data currently stored in several different 

legacy systems can extracted and migrated in a timely manner . 

 

c) Moss Roads 

It was reported in the previous TAMP refresh document that the 

County Council has in region of 100km of roads that are built on 

moss land, which for a variety of reasons present us with unique 

maintenance challenges. 

 

In order to try and understand the extent the problems that the 

moss roads cause to the residents, businesses and visitors to 

Lancashire we carried out a review of the moss roads in the West 

Lancashire District area and developed a hierarchy with individual 

moss roads being allocated to one of four 'classes' in the 

hierarchy, depending on the function they serve. 

 

This hierarchy would subsequently be used to define maintenance 

standards and maintenance priorities.  Whilst this methodology 

has only been applied to the West Lancashire district, it will be 

applied to other district areas that have moss roads.  Due to the 

complexity of this matter, copies of the draft proposals are 

currently being considered by legal colleagues following which 

they will be shared with Parish Councils. 

P
age 21



 
 
 

Transport Asset Management Plan – Data Refresh June 2015  Page 12 

 

5) Revised Asset Condition Data 

Much of the condition data contained in the Transport Asset 

Management Plan was compiled in the 18 month period prior to 

Cabinet Member for Highways and Transport approving the TAMP 

in 2004 and was used to calculate the overall service standard that 

the transport assets were providing users at that time. 

 

The condition data in the original TAMP is now updated and 

reported to members of the Scrutiny Committee on an annual 

basis.  Comparing our latest condition data to the 2014 baseline 

data enables our current performance will be measured. 

 

The following pages provide a brief summary of the condition of 

each of the asset groups covered by the TAMP together with a 

summary of the main points arising out of our analysis of each 

group. 

 

Each section follows a similar basic structure.  Where possible 

graphs will show simultaneously 2014 and 2015 data.  Where this 

isn’t possible, two separate graphs will be provided to show the 

relative condition of the asset on a district by district basis for both 

2014 and 2015 so that year on year comparisons can be made. 

 

A summary provides key bullet points which seek to outline briefly 

the key facts relating to the category of the asset.  The information 

presented includes: 

 

 How much of the asset we responsible for, 

 How the condition of the asset is assessed, 

 If there any gaps in the information we currently hold, 

 The average condition of the asset in 2014 and 2016, 

 How much financial resource has, on average, been 

available in recent years; 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 22



 
 
 

Transport Asset Management Plan – Data Refresh June 2015  Page 13 

 

A, B and C Roads  

Most Cost Effective Strategy: Investment in preventative maintenance using appropriate surface treatments determined through 

deterioration modelling. 

 

 

10

60

110

160

210

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

K
M

Km Roads RED or AMBER Actual 2009 to 2014 and Trend 2015 to 2018
Lancaster
Ribble Valley
West Lancs
Wyre
Chorley
Average
Preston
Fylde
South Ribble
Pendle
Rossendale
Burnley
Hyndburn

P
age 23



 
 
 

Transport Asset Management Plan – Data Refresh June 2015  Page 14 

  

10

60

110

160

210

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

K
M

Km of A, B and C Roads RED or AMBER - Actual from 2009 to 2016

Lancaster Ribble Valley West Lanc
Wyre Chorley Average
Preston Fylde South Ribble
Pendle Rossendale Burnley
Hyndburn

Pre - TAMP Road Condition Index Post - TAMP Road Condition Index

P
age 24



 
 
 

Transport Asset Management Plan – Data Refresh June 2015  Page 15 

 

 

Summary 

 The asset consists of a total of 2,567km of highway, 

 The length of A, B and C roads classified as RED or AMBER in 2014 

was in the region of 1,180 km.  According to the May 2016 

SCANNER survey the quantity of RED or AMBER has reduced from 

1176km down to 760km, a reduction of 416 km (35%), 

 The general improvement in the B & C road network has returned 

many in a number of district to their 2009 condition, 

 All districts have seen an overall improvement in the condition of the 

A,B & C road network, 

 The proportion of RED or AMBER A, B and C roads varies across 

the district areas and is shown in the graph above 

 Between 2014 and 2016 the average % of RED or AMBER on :- 

 A roads reduced by 20% (50.33km) 

 B roads reduced by 41.51% (91.84km) 

 C roads reduced by 38.54% (276.57km) 

 Overall the A, B & C road network is regarded as being 

ACCEPTABLE 

 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

2014 2016 2014 2016 2014 2016 2014 2016 2014 2016 2014 2016 2014 2016 2014 2016 2014 2016 2014 2016 2014 2016 2014 2016

Burnley Chorley Fylde Hyndburn Lancaster Pendle Preston Ribble Valley Rossendale South Ribble West Lancs Wyre

A,B & C Roads - % Red, Amber or Green 2014 v 2016

P
age 25



 
 
 

Transport Asset Management Plan – Data Refresh June 2015  Page 16 

 

Rural Unclassified Roads 

 

Most Cost Effective Strategy: Investment in preventative 

maintenance which is based on appropriate surface treatment in 

preference to more costly resurfacing of roads. 

 

Summary 

 

 The asset consists of approximately 1,065km. 

 A full video survey of this asset grouping was completed in 2015-16 

the results of which are now being analysed. 

 The current condition is indicated by the number of defects identified 

by highways inspections, as recorded in the Highway Defect Sort 

System (HDSS). 

 Due to a change from EXOR to HDSS the defects in the original 

TAMP are not comparable to the latest figures. 

 Overall there has been a 4% fall (539 no.) in safety critical defects 

on rural roads between 2014/15 and 2015/16, with increases in 

defect numbers in Chorley (185), Fylde (235), Hyndburn (38), Ribble 

Valley (220) and West Lancashire (422). 

 The current condition of the asset is assessed as being 

ACCEPTABLE. 

 Investment is based firstly on maintaining the current condition of the 

network as far as is practical, and secondly, if investment levels are 

sufficient, to bring all district areas up to the same county standard. 

 The asset is important to the rural economy and to rural 

communities. 

 

 

 

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

3,500

Defects - Rural Unclassified 2014 v 2015

2014 2015

0.0%

5.0%

10.0%

15.0%

20.0%

25.0%
Defect - % Rural Unclassified Network 2015

P
age 26



 
 
 

Transport Asset Management Plan – Data Refresh June 2015  Page 17 

 

Residential Roads 

 

Most Cost Effective Strategy: Investment in preventative 

maintenance which is based on appropriate surface treatment in 

preference to more costly resurfacing of roads. 

 

Summary 

 

• The asset includes approximately 3,400 km of residential roads. 

• A full video survey of this asset grouping was completed in 2015-16 

the results of which are now being analysed. 

• The current condition is indicated by the numbers of defects 

identified by highways inspections as recorded in the Highway 

Defect Sort System (HDSS), 

• Due to a change from EXOR to HDSS the defects in the original 

TAMP are not comparable to the latest figures. 

• Overall there has been a 5% increase (1,314 no.) in defects on 

residential roads between 2014/15 and 2015/16.  Defect numbers 

fell in the district areas of Burnley, Pendle, Rossendale and Wyre. .  

• The current condition of the asset is assessed as being 

ACCEPTABLE. 

• The estimated investment required to maintain the current rate of 

deterioration would be £5m per annum. 

• Investment is based firstly on maintaining the current condition of the 

network as far as is practical. 

• Secondly, if resources allow, investment will be based on bringing 

all districts to the county standard. 

. 

 

 

 

 

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

3,500

4,000

Defects - Urban Unclassified 2014 v 2015

2014 2015

0
50

100
150
200
250
300
350
400
450

Km Length by District

P
age 27



 
 
 

Transport Asset Management Plan – Data Refresh June 2015  Page 18 

 

Footways 
 
Most Cost Effective Strategy: Investment in preventative 

maintenance which is based on appropriate surface treatment in 

preference to more costly resurfacing of footways. 

 
Summary 
 

 There are over 8,500km of footways in Lancashire. 

 A full survey of this asset grouping was started in 2015-16 and is due 

to be completed shortly.   

 The current condition is indicated by the numbers of defects 

identified by highways inspections, as recorded in the Highway 

Defect Sort System (HDSS) and the number of claims received. 

 Due to a change from EXOR to HDSS the defects stated in the 

original TAMP are not comparable to the latest figures. 

 Overall there has been a fall of 39% (8,639 no) in footway defects 

and a 23% fall (87 no.) in claims between 2014-15 and 2015-16. 

 Small increase in Hyndburn (1) and Rossendale (9) (claims) and 

Fylde (20), Hyndburn (230) and South Ribble (289) (defects).  

 The current condition of the asset is assessed as being GOOD. 

 The estimated capital investment required to maintain the current 

rate of deterioration would be £2.5m per annum. 

 Investment is based firstly on maintaining the current condition of the 

network as far as is practical and secondly, if resources allow, on 

bringing all district areas to the same county standard. 

 

 

 

 

0

20

40

60

80
Footway Claims 2013/14 to 2015/16

2013-14 2014-15 2015-16

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000
Defects - Footways 2014 v 2015 

2014 2015

0

200

400

600

800
Km Length by District

P
age 28



 
 
 

Transport Asset Management Plan – Data Refresh June 2015  Page 19 

 

Bridges and Similar Structures 

 

Most Cost Effective Strategy: Investment in preventative 

maintenance which is not based on reconstruction of bridges but 

is based on appropriate 

 

Summary 

 

 We are responsible for approximately 2,000 bridges and similar 

structures*, 

 We have good condition information relating to the condition of the 

asset. 

 The average bridge condition index has improved from 89.3 in 2014 

to 90.19 in April 2016, which is regarded as EXCELLENT, 

 The average bridge condition index has improved in all district areas 

over the past 12 months apart from Burnley, Pendle and Rossendale 

which have shown slight reductions of 0.06, 0.15 and 0.11 

respectively.  The average bridge condition index in these three 

areas however is still regarded as EXCELLENT. 

 The investment strategy is based upon identifying bridges and 

similar structures which have a bridge condition index (critical or 

adjusted) of < 40**, and producing action plans for each such 

structure. 

 On the basis of the bridge condition data, resources are allocated on 

the basis of need as individual projects are unlikely to be included in 

any district based allocation. 

*Excludes maintenance of Network Rail bridges, major new projects or 

major refurbishments. **A bridge in poor condition does not necessarily 

require urgent remedial action and is not automatically at risk of failure 

or subject to load restrictions. 

 

. 

 

 

0

50

100

150

200

250

300
Average Bridge Conditon Index by District 2014
90 - 100 EXCELLENT
80 - 90 GOOD
65 - 80 FAIR
40 - 65 ACCEPTABLE
<40 POOR

0

50

100

150

200

250

300
Average Bridge Condition Index by District 2016
90 - 100 Excellent
80 - 90 Good
65 - 80 Fair
40 - 65 Acceptable
<40 Poor

P
age 29



 
 
 

Transport Asset Management Plan – Data Refresh June 2015  Page 20 

 

Street Lighting

Most Cost Effective Strategy: The risk to the public from a column falling over is generally low; however, half of our columns exceed the 

age when they should be regularly tested or considered for replacement or removal.  The best strategy is to reduce the likelihood of columns 

falling over by either replacing or removing the highest risk columns or removal of columns without replacement. 

 

 
 

Summary

 We are responsible for approximately 148,450 street lights and 

17,600 illuminated signs, bollards and similar installations. 

 Our electricity bill for these items is in the region of £6m per annum, 

 According to the risk assessment contained in the Institute of 

Lighting Professionals Technical Report 22 'Managing a Vital Asset' 

48% of lighting columns have now exceeded their 'Action Age', a 

reduction of 2.71% equivalent to 1,986 columns from 2014, 

 18,610 medium risk columns (in yellow) will score highly enough in 

the next five years to be included in the high priority bracket, 

currently having a score >51, 

 11,947 columns (in red) are the highest risk now having a score 

>150. 

 The current condition of the stock is considered to be GOOD. 

 In order to maintain the current rate of deterioration of the stock, it is 

estimated that a capital investment of the order of £6m per annum 

would be required.  The likely capital investment available for 

2016/17 is £1m. 

 Data cleansing has resulted in the ages of some columns being 

adjusted meaning that 2014 & 2015 data not strictly comparable  

 

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

2014 2016 2014 2016 2014 2016 2014 2016 2014 2016 2014 2016 2014 2016 2014 2016 2014 2016 2014 2016 2014 2016 2014 2016

Burnley Chorley Fylde Hyndburn Lancaster Pendle Preston Ribble Valley Rossendale South Ribble West Lancs Wyre

Number of Low, Medium and High Risk Columns 2014 v 2016
Low Risk
Medium Risk
High Risk

P
age 30



 
 
 

Transport Asset Management Plan – Data Refresh June 2015  Page 21 

 

Traffic Signals 

Most Cost Effective Strategy: Investment in preventative maintenance which is based on replacement of obsolete units at key junctions 

which will not be covered by Highways and Transport Masterplan activities. 

 

 
 

Summary

• There are 321 sites in Lancashire which are controlled by a total of 

approximately 1,000 traffic signal / pelican crossing installations. 

 The condition of the stock is measured in terms of the age of 

installations which normally have a service life of 20 years before 

they reach a point where they are no longer supported by the 

manufacturer. 

 We currently have a total of 187 installations (30% of the stock) more 

than 20 years old – which is reduction of 17 installations (3%) from 

2014. 

 It is estimated that a replacement programme at a value of £0.5m 

per year would be required to replace the stock that is no longer 

supported by the manufacturer. 

 A breakdown of traffic signal and pedestrian crossing equipment up 

to 20 years old (green) and age 21 years and over (red) and no 

longer supported is shown in the graph above. 

 The traffic signal asset group is considered to be in an 

ACCEPTABLE condition. 

 

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

2014 2016 2014 2016 2014 2016 2014 2016 2014 2016 2014 2016 2014 2016 2014 2016 2014 2016 2014 2016 2014 2016 2014 2016

Burnley Chorley Fylde Hyndburn Lancaster South Ribble Pendle Preston Ribble Valley Rossendale West Lancs Wyre

Signals by Age and District 2013 v 2016

up to 20 yrs
21+ yr

P
age 31



 
 
 

Transport Asset Management Plan – Data Refresh June 2015  Page 22 

 

6) Service Standards 

The Service Standards in the TAMP were derived wherever 

possible from condition data collected by engineering analysis and 

used to:- 

 

 Monitor the overall condition of assets, 

 Monitor our year on year performance, and 

 Compare overall progress against the targets contained in 

the main TAMP document. 

 

As more condition data becomes available for more asset 

groupings the performance targets contained in the main TAMP 

will be updated as appropriate and included in a future data refresh 

document so that they offer a more refined and accurate way of 

assessing the condition of the asset.  Where it is necessary to 

change the indicators we will clearly explain why such changes 

are necessary. 

 

The main TAMP document identifies 5 service standards of 

POOR, ACCEPTABLE, FAIR, GOOD and EXCELLENT, against 

which the benefits to the users of the asset can be measured.  

Details of the generic levels of service that each of the transport 

asset groups are likely to provide to users at each service standard 

are shown in Appendix 1.  

 

The condition data contained in this data refresh document 

enables us to compare our performance against the baseline 

figure contained in the TAMP. 

 

The TAMP set an overall indicative service standard target of 

GOOD to be achieved at the end of period 2020/21-2024/25.  In 

setting an overall indicative service standard target of GOOD it is 

recognised that it is not possible or affordable to maintain all asset 

groups to the same level.  The targets for individual asset groups 

have, therefore, been set according to county council priorities, 

risk and affordability. 

 

The following table details those assets covered in the TAMP and 

shows the service standards currently being provided by the 

transport assets. 

 

Given the range of assets covered by this TAMP, there will 

inevitably be differences in the condition of each asset grouping. 

To some extent this is determined not only by the intervention 

intervals but also treatment and remediation options. 

 

The 5 year, 10 year and 15 year target for each asset type is 

shown in the table below:- 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 32



 
 
 

Transport Asset Management Plan – Data Refresh June 2015  Page 23 

 

Asset Category 
Condition 

Now 
5 Year 
Target 

10 Year 
Target 

15 Year 
Target 

A, B and C Roads 

(% RED & AMBER) 

A = 25% A = 10% A = 10% A = 10% 
B = 40% B = 15% B = 15% B = 15% 

C = 50% C = 20% C = 20% C = 20% 
Residential 
Unclassified 

Roads (% RED & 

AMBER) 

28-40% 28-40% 14-18% 14-18% 

Rural Unclassified 
Roads 

(% RED & AMBER) 

28-40% 28-40% 14-18% 14-18% 

Footways  
(Number of defects) 

50,000-
60,000 

<15,000 <15,000 <15,000 

Bridges and Similar 
Structures Bridge 

Condition Index (Ave.) 
80-90 80-90 80-90 80-90 

Street Lighting 
(% of high risk 
installations) 

20-25% 25-35% 25-35% 25-35% 

Traffic Signals 
(% of units beyond 

design life) 
15-20% 30-40% 20-30% <10% 

 

The overall condition of the transport infrastructure asset has been 

determined by assigning scores to each service standard.  A 

weighted score has been produced by multiplying each score by 

the asset valuation.  A weighted average is calculated by dividing 

the total weighted scoring by the total value of the asset, as 

detailed below 

 

 

 

Scores per Service Standard 

POOR ACCEPTABLE FAIR GOOD EXCELLENT 

1 2 3 4 5 

 
Asset Condition Summary June 2016 
 

Asset Group 
Valuation 
£ Million 
2014-15 

Service 
Standard 

Score 
Weighted 

Score 

A Roads 859 ACCEPTABLE 2 1,718 

B Roads 510 ACCEPTABLE 2 1,020 

C Roads 1,444 ACCEPTABLE 2 2,888 

Residential Unclassified 
Roads 

3,718 ACCEPTABLE 2 7,436 

Rural Unclassified Roads 1,166 ACCEPTABLE 2 2,332 

Footway & Cycleways 831 GOOD 4 3,324 

Bridges & Similar 
Structures 

1,201 EXCELLENT 5 6,005 

Street Lighting 206 GOOD 4 824 

Traffic Signals 62 ACCEPTABLE 2 124 

Total 9,997     25,671 

Weighted Average Score  = 2.57 

 
Overall grade boundaries have been determined as follows:- 

 

Overall Service Standard – Grade Boundaries 

POOR ACCEPTABLE FAIR GOOD EXCELLENT 

1 to 1.9 2 to 2.9 3 to 3.9 4 to 4.9 5 

 

 

P
age 33



 
 
 

Transport Asset Management Plan – Data Refresh June 2015  Page 24 

 

The initial TAMP assessed the service standard to be 2.26 which 

determined the transport asset to be in an ACCEPTABLE 

condition.  As a result of this latest data refresh the condition of 

the service standard has been calculated at 2.57 which represents 

a 9% improvement from last year and a 13% improvement from 

June 2014.  According to the grade boundaries table above, our 

overall service standard should still be regarded as being 

ACCEPTABLE. 

According to the general service standards in Appendix 1, our 

highway and transport asset network should be regarded as being 

generally free from critical safety defects, although considerable 

maintenance backlogs do exist which have accumulated, in 

general, due to insufficient resources being made available over a 

period of time to maintain the whole asset base. 

 

7) Conclusion 

From the above it can be seen that a change in approach from 

'worst first' to a preventative maintenance regime has already had 

a big impact particularly on the A, B and C road network which has 

seen the condition of many roads in a number of district areas 

improve to at least those enjoyed in 2009, as measured by the % 

or RED or AMBER roads across this network. 

This approach has also seen a reduction both in the number of 

defects across the network and the number of footway claims 

received. 

 

A change in approach from allocating funds on a district basis 

purely according to asset numbers/lengths in favour of a 

countywide approach where funding is based on 'need', as 

determined by the relevant condition data, is starting to have the 

desired effect of 'normalising' the condition of each asset grouping 

across Lancashire.  This approach needs to be continued so that 

all our residents and service users are able to benefit from the 

same service standard regardless of district area. 

Due to continued pressures from the DfT the County Council 

cannot afford to stand still.  It needs to continue to adapt and 

evolve if it is to secure the same level of funding as it does now.  

Failure to attract sufficient funding will threaten the County 

Council's ability to apply the TAMP principles in future years. 

Employing Gaist Ltd will significantly enhance the County 

Council's knowledge of the condition of all highway and footway 

assets and will enable us for the first time to carryout 'scenario 

planning' so that we are able to assess future maintenance costs 

etc. using different material choices and different intervention 

levels. 

 

The results of the video survey data may require us to revisit the 

service standards contained in the main TAMP document as we 

will for the first time in many years have engineering data for the 

whole of footway and unclassified road networks. 

 

 

 

P
age 34



 
 
 

Transport Asset Management Plan – Data Refresh June 2015  Page 25 

 

Appendix 1 

 
Generic Service Standards 

 

Service 

Standard 
Description of Level of Service 

POOR Definition 

Service delivery that is considered to fall below the minimum standard deemed necessary to maintain the asset in a 

safe manner.  As a result only those essential and critical repairs that are affordable are undertaken.  The risks and 

consequences associated with providing this service level are summarised below: 

 
a) Legal 

 Unable to ensure that we carry out all those duties that are incumbent on the authority through law, statutory duties 

or mandatory requirements; 

 Insufficient allocation to carry out works to recommendations contained in relevant codes of practice for which there 

is no approved derogation; 

 Authority is more exposed to legal action up to and including corporate manslaughter; 

 Degree of risk may be mitigated by a robust risk assessment which describes the reasons for deviation from the 

code of practice. 

 
b) Safety 

 In all cases except where the asset condition was formerly GOOD or EXCELLENT it is likely to result in a significant 

increase in the risks associated with safety or legal deficits; 

 Risks associated with the asset may be increased with attendant risks of legal exposure; 

 Likely to result in a significant increase in third party claims against LCC for personal injury and third party damage; 

 Heavy reliance on Safety Inspection regime to identify defects. 

 
c) Availability 

 Availability of entire network cannot be guaranteed; 

P
age 35



 
 
 

Transport Asset Management Plan – Data Refresh June 2015  Page 26 

 

 Poor asset condition means parts of the asset may be withdrawn on a temporary or permanent basis to reduce the 

safety and legal exposure of the authority; 

 As no programmed maintenance work is undertaken assets may be withdrawn from service for some time. 

 
d) Condition 

 Condition of the asset will quickly deteriorate as investment is not keeping pace with the maintenance requirements.  

This standard is not sustainable over the long term; 

 It is assumed that the rate of deterioration exceeds the under investment required to maintain condition by a factor 

of at least 50% i.e. investment £10m less than required means a depreciation of £15m in asset value. 

 
e) Asset Value 

 Asset value is likely to be depreciating more rapidly as a result of minimal investment; 

 Maintenance heavily reliant on reactive activities which result in unpredictable financial management and highest 

whole life costs; 

 The cost of investment needed to return the stock to the minimum standard is growing rapidly and exceeds the 

resources available. 

 
f) Public Perception 

 Likely to be well aware that the asset is deteriorating and is becoming less available, safe or fit for purpose; 

 Members in particular will be facing pressure for improvement and will seek to react to local pressures potentially 

diluting the impact on overall asset condition; 

 Complaints and claims would be expected to be high. 

 
g) Service Delivery 

 The principle focus is likely to be reactive maintenance with minimum or no preventative maintenance intervention 

to prevent asset deterioration; 

 It will not be possible to address all issues rapidly and a prioritisation of service demands will be required; 

P
age 36



 
 
 

Transport Asset Management Plan – Data Refresh June 2015  Page 27 

 

 It is likely that increasing portions of the asset are removed from service and that the trend accelerates with time 

as the asset ages; 

 An increasing backlog of maintenance issues will exacerbate the service problems and lead to a further chain 

reaction of deterioration; 

 Depreciation in the asset value would be expected to exceed the under investment required to achieve a FAIR 

standard. It would be expected that initially deterioration would outstrip underinvestment by 50% with that 

proportion tending to increase year on year. 

ACCEPTABLE Definition 

The minimum level of service to meet most statutory requirements and compliance with minimum requirements 

detailed in national codes of practice.  The risks and consequences associated with providing this service level are 

summarised below : 

 

a) Legal 

 The authority complies with the requirements of the relevant codes of practice in all key respects; any derogation 

is documented and supported by a robust risk assessment; 

 We know what is required and how we deliver the requirements. 

 
b) Safety 

 High reliance on Safety Inspection regime to identify defects; 

 In all cases except where the asset condition was formerly GOOD or EXCELLENT it is likely to result in an increase 

in the risks associated with safety or legal deficits; 

 Safety defects are well defined with performance standards for rectification of those defects.  Systems are in place 

to ensure proper assessment prioritisation and rectification of defects or temporary arrangements to mitigate risk 

until a permanent repair is possible; 

 We have relevant information to support our delivery to required performance standards. 

 
c) Availability 

 The majority of the asset is available for normal reasonable use. 

P
age 37



 
 
 

Transport Asset Management Plan – Data Refresh June 2015  Page 28 

 

 
d) Condition 

 The condition of the asset is deteriorating but at a reduced rate compared to POOR standard; 

 It is assumed that the rate of deterioration over under investment is of the order of 30% i.e. £10m underinvestment 

results in £13m of deterioration. 

 
e) Asset Value 

 The asset value is likely to be depreciating as a result of minimum investment. 

 
f) Public Perception 

 Likely to be well aware that the asset is deteriorating and is becoming less available, safe or fit for purpose; 

 Members in particular will be facing pressure for improvement and will seek to react to local pressures potentially 

diluting the impact on overall asset condition; 

 Complaints and claims would be expected to be high. It is highly likely that members or the public would easily 

distinguish between POOR and ACCEPTABLE standards in their localities. 

 
g) Service Delivery 

 The principle focus is likely to be reactive maintenance rather than preventative works undertaken at the optimal 

time; 

 It will not be possible to address all issues rapidly and a prioritisation of service demands will be required; 

 An increasing backlog of maintenance needs will exacerbate the service problems and lead to a further chain 

reaction of deterioration; 

  Depreciation in the asset value would be expected to exceed the under investment required to achieve a FAIR 

standard; 

 It would be expected that initially deterioration would outstrip underinvestment by 30% with that proportion tending 

to increase year on year. 

 
 
 

P
age 38



 
 
 

Transport Asset Management Plan – Data Refresh June 2015  Page 29 

 

FAIR Definition 

A level of service that generally meets statutory needs and the requirements detailed in national codes of practice.  

The risks and consequences associated with providing this service level are summarised below:  

 
a) Legal 

 The authority complies with the requirements of the relevant codes of practice in all respects and a robust risk 

assessment exists, except where it chooses not to carry one out.  In all such instances any derogation is 

documented and supported by a robust risk assessment; 

 We know what is required and how we deliver the requirements; 

 The legal exposure of the authority is reasonably controlled and robust systems are in place to provide supporting 

evidence of compliance with the code of practice. 

 
b) Safety 

 Safety defects are well defined with performance standards for rectification of those defects; 

 Systems are in place to ensure proper assessment prioritisation and rectification of defects or temporary 

arrangements to mitigate risk until a permanent repair is possible; 

 We have relevant information to support our delivery to required performance standards. We are proactive in the 

identification and rectification of those defects; 

 In all cases except where the asset condition was formerly GOOD or EXCELLENT it is unlikely to result in an 

increase in the risks associated with safety or legal deficits. 

 
c) Availability 

 The majority of the asset is available for normal reasonable use; 

 Restrictions of the asset are largely planned maintenance activities rather than emergency repairs with the 

exception of emergency utility repairs. 

 
d) Condition 

 The condition of the asset is stabilised or with minor deterioration; 

P
age 39



 
 
 

Transport Asset Management Plan – Data Refresh June 2015  Page 30 

 

 It is assumed that the rate of deterioration is under 10%. 

 
e) Asset Value 

 The asset value is likely to be depreciating as a result of other external factors rather than under investment. 

 
f) Public Perception 

 It is likely that public opinion does not reflect the condition of the asset and the presence of any defects at all would 

be considered by members of the public to indicate that the asset was in poor condition. 

 
g) Service Delivery 

 A mixture of preventative maintenance undertaken at the optimal time and reactive maintenance will be delivered 

although it is possible that outside pressure focuses some investment in areas which do not serve to improve the 

condition of the asset; 

 The backlog of maintenance needs will probably be growing but at a reduced rate, due to any severe weather 

events and the reduction of our ability to focus on technically driven programmes. 

 

GOOD Definition 

A level of service that is above statutory needs and the requirements detailed in national codes of practice.  The risks 

and consequences associated with providing this service level are summarised below: 

 
a) Legal 

 The authority generally exceeds the requirements of the relevant codes of practice in key respects; any derogation 

is minor and defensible, documented, and supported by a robust risk assessment; 

 We know what is required and how we deliver the requirements; 

 We are able to defend legal claims robustly and develop a strong due diligence defence. 

 
b) Safety 

 Safety defects are well defined with performance standards for rectification of those defects; 

P
age 40



 
 
 

Transport Asset Management Plan – Data Refresh June 2015  Page 31 

 

 Systems are in place to ensure proper assessment prioritisation and rectification of defects or temporary 

arrangements to mitigate risk until a permanent repair is possible; 

 We have supporting information to ensure our delivery to required performance standards; 

 Should see a reduction in numbers of third party claims against LCC for personal injury and third party damage. 

 
c) Availability 

 The vast majority of the asset is available for normal reasonable use. 

 
d) Condition 

 The condition of the asset has been stabilised but significant improvements will take time It is assumed that the 

rate of deterioration is minimal. 

 
e) Asset Value 

 The asset value is maintained as far as is reasonably practical; 

 Relatively high costs in the short term as intervention measures are used to improve asset condition – results in 

lower whole life costs. 

 
f) Public Perception 

 It is likely that public perception is still focused on the defects present and that it will take significant time before 

any improvement in perception of the asset is noted. 

 
g) Service Delivery 

 A mixture of preventative and reactive service delivery models will be used as the backlog of maintenance issues 

will only be reduced slowly if at all; 

 Increased capital budget enables preventative maintenance to be carried out.  Such works are directed at 

intervening at the right point to restore the asset to an appropriate condition at minimum cost. 

 
 
 

P
age 41



 
 
 

Transport Asset Management Plan – Data Refresh June 2015  Page 32 

 

EXCELLENT Definition 

A level of service that is well above statutory needs and the requirements detailed in national codes of practice.  

Service delivery aimed at maintaining the asset to a high standard.  The risks and consequences associated with 

providing this service level are summarised below: 

 
a) Legal 

 The authority complies with the requirements of the relevant codes of practice in all respects; any minor local 

derogations are documented and supported by a robust risk assessment; 

 We know what is required and how we deliver the requirements; 

 We further understand future needs and pressures and have a well developed strategic plan for the next five years. 

 
b) Safety 

 Significant reduction in claims against LCC for personal injury and third party damage; 

 Safety defects are well defined with performance standards for rectification of those defects; 

 Systems are in place to ensure proper assessment prioritisation and rectification of defects or temporary 

arrangements to mitigate risk until a permanent repair is possible; 

 We have relevant information to support our delivery to required performance standards; 

 Performance standards are challenging and reviewed regularly. 

 
c) Availability 

 The asset is available for normal reasonable use. 

 
d) Condition 

 The condition of the asset is improving strongly with asset value increasing; 

 It is increasingly possible to flexibly assign resources to selected programmes each year as the relative 

deterioration is marginal year on year. 

 
e) Asset Value 

 The investment required to bring the asset to an as new condition is reducing; 

P
age 42



 
 
 

Transport Asset Management Plan – Data Refresh June 2015  Page 33 

 

 High costs in the short term as intervention measures are used to improve asset condition – results in lowest whole 

life costs. 

 
f) Public Perception 

 Generally public perception of the condition of the strategic and residential road network would be expected to be 

positive however the response to the few defects remaining will be disproportionate as expectations will steadily 

increase; 

  The majority of the asset improvements will be less visible and the general public and members would not be 

expected to notice improved drainage, improving lighting column condition or improving bridge condition. 

 
g) Service Delivery 

 The principle service delivery is focused on preventative maintenance at the optimal time in an assets life cycle 

which will effectively reduce the average cost per scheme, particularly in respect of roads, and in turn fuel more 

rapidly improving condition; 

 Operating at a sustainable level using sustainable methods. 

 

 

 

P
age 43



P
age 44



Scrutiny Committee
Meeting to be held on Friday, 22 July 2016

Electoral Division affected:
(All Divisions);

Highways Performance

Contact for further information:
Christine Entwistle, Tel: 01772 535205, Senior District Lead Officer
christine.entwistle@lancashire.gov.uk

Executive Summary

This report serves to update the committee on the current communication 
arrangements in place to support Members with their highways casework and 
service performance of the same.

A verbal report will be presented regarding highway works and delivery schedules

Recommendation

The Committee is asked to note and comment on the report

Background and Advice 

1. Background

This report is presented to the Overview and Scrutiny committee in response to the 
committees request for an update on service response times to Member enquiries.  

The report will provide an overview of the current resources, communication 
arrangements and performance levels.  

2. Resources

In 2010 Highways employed 12 Public Realm Managers and 12 District Lead 
Officers, one significant aspect of their collective role was to manage all political 
stakeholder enquiries, most notably the enquiries and highway casework of county 
council Members in conjunction with teams of engineers and technical staff 
conducting investigations of Members requests and supported by budget streams 
(revenue and "Members Pot")  providing a degree of flexibility to those managers in 
delivering the aspirations of  Members. 

Page 45

Agenda Item 5



Since 2010 the Highways Service as part of its contribution in achieving the sizeable 
budget savings the county council has had to make, has to date lost 110 posts from 
the Public Realm and Business Support teams, these are the people that would have 
historically dealt with Member enquiries.

By 2014 Public Realm Managers had reduced to four and District Lead Officers 
reduced to five and as stated above significant reductions of technical staff who 
supported them in carrying out their role with remaining staff overwhelmed with the 
volume of workload,  and performance levels which are detailed later in this report, 
suffered accordingly.  

3. Highways Service Offer

In February 2015 the Highways Service Offer was presented to Full Council which 
detailed the changes the service had to be made in light of reduced resources.  The 
service offer clearly outlined how Highways needed to adapt and prioritise to be able 
to deliver and maintain the best service it could to our communities.  

Material changes included:
 De-establish the Public Realm Manager role.
 Remove designated contacts and adopt a team based approach to prevent 

individual officers being over burdened with unacceptable high levels of 
enquiries and work.

 Extended response times to 20 working days.

The Service Offer cited that "The reduction in management capacity within the 
highway service and a reduced ability to engage specifically with elected members 
on specific issues mean that many more queries will have to be reported using the 
Customer service centre with updates to queries being accessed through those 
same channels. The highway service will be unable to support regular 1 to 1 
meetings with Members. There will be less forward looking liaison with district and 
parish councils and the contact will become much more transactional."

The Highways Service Offer was approved by Full Council in February 2015.

4. Member Feedback

Following Member feedback in August 2015 and service recognition that Members 
need to have a direct link to Highways, and whilst appreciating that due to the 
reduction in staffing levels we must continue to operate with a team based approach 
to working to ensure that no individual officer has undue and unacceptable levels of 
workload, it was agreed to provide a heightened service to county council Members.  

In September 2015 Highways Direct was launched and managed by the highway 
service district lead officer team which was bolstered by an additional officer 
reassigned from another team in highways.  

County Council Members have a direct telephone number to their district lead officer 
for urgent queries; a dedicated email address highwaysdirect@lancashire.gov.uk the 
use of which ensures that we prioritise Members highway casework and provide an 

Page 46

mailto:highwaysdirect@lancashire.gov.uk


improved service response time of 15 working days as opposed to 20 working days 
to other stakeholders.   

5. Performance

It is accepted that in 2010 and in the subsequent years when there were 12 public 
realm managers and 12 district lead officers coupled with many more technical staff 
who all could be contacted direct, that it was perceived that Members received a 
better service. 

In addition to the number of staff resource these officers had access to budget 
streams which also provided greater flexibility in providing solutions to issues 
Members raised which again enhanced that perception of a better service.  

In 2014 and in preparation of writing the Highways Service Office, detailed research 
and analysis of our actual performance was carried out.  It was evident and 
unsurprising that with a reduction of 15 key officers (a loss of 8 Public Realm 
Managers and 7 District Lead Officers) as well as a loss of many technical staff that 
it was not feasible for staff and despite their best efforts to provide the same level of 
service as in 2010.  

Instead it was evident that we provided a very chaotic and disjointed service, with 
many examples and an increased high risk of member enquiries being lost or not 
actioned, despite personally speaking with officers.  This was due to the high 
workloads of individual staff members who were overwhelmed by the volume of 
Member issues and the service could not effectively control this individual volume 
due to the direct contact systems in place.

It is without question that there were pockets of excellence and some Members did 
receive a very high level of service, but this was not consistent throughout the county 
and we had significant number of cases of service failure.  

In 2014/15 we responded to Member enquiries within 15 working days in just 47% of 
cases with the average length of time 17 working days.  Data below:

Year Total No VIP 
Enquiries

Of which 
from CC 
Members

% of CC Members 
responded within 
Target Response 
time*

Average 
Number of 
Working Days to 
respond

2014/15 5809 1,569 47% 17
2015/16 9041 3,291 93% 9

*Q1 of 15/16, 20 working days - Q2, Q3, &Q4 of 15/16, 15 working days

6. Conclusion

Page 47



It is often said that perception is more powerful than the truth and there is a mixture 
of both in respect to Highways providing an effective service in managing Members 
highway casework.  

It is true that in 2010 and the immediate years following that we could support and 
many Members enjoyed a very personal and high level service, with direct 
communication with named officers as we had the staffing levels to support that 
relationship and also budget streams to deliver a more tailored service.  

However by 2014 with such a significant reduction in staff as well as changes in 
budgets we were no longer able and despite individual officers best efforts provide a 
consistently good or effective service.

Like most services very difficult proposals and recommendations had to be sent to 
Members to deliberate and decide on.  12 Public Realm Managers financially cost 
the county council just over £720,000 each year and following analysis of their role 
and notwithstanding the added value they provided to Members, at a time when we 
had to consider reducing the actual services we provide the people of Lancashire, 
we could not justify that expenditure and instead recommended that we maximised 
our funding in delivering essential highway services on the ground to benefit our 
communities.

Since the implementation of Highways Direct in September 2015 the service has 
performed at consistently high levels and received many compliments from county 
council Members in the level of service provided.  

Despite the worst winter in living memory in which staff have been  overwhelmed by 
the volume of enquiries and work loads and which is partially responsible for the 
56% increase in enquiries received in 15/16, staff have worked to outstanding levels 
to maintain an overall high performance, although it must be noted that there have 
been difficulties in achieving response timeframes in Q4 of 2015/16 and Q1 of 
2016/17 as we are still working through the huge amount of work the persistent and 
heavy rainfall and flooding created and performance levels in responding to 
Members enquiries within 15 working days has dipped to 84%.  

Whilst that is acknowledged, we continue to work hard to provide the best service we 
can to Members with the resources we have and although 15 working days is our 
service response time to Member enquiries, we do respond as quickly as we 
possibly can, reacting to urgent requests appropriately and which is evidenced by 
our overall average response time of 9 working days.   

Consultations

n/a

Implications: 

This item has the following implications, as indicated:

Page 48



Risk management

There are no risk implications within this report

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
List of Background Papers

Paper Date Contact/Tel

n/a n/a n/a

Reason for inclusion in Part II, if appropriate

Page 49



Page 50



Scrutiny Committee
Meeting to be held on Friday, 22 July 2016

Electoral Division affected:
(All Divisions);

Response by the Cabinet Member for Environment, Planning and Cultural 
Services to the recommendations of the Scrutiny Committee's review of 
Planning Matters
Appendix 'A' refers

Contact for further information:
Andrew Mullaney, Tel: 01772 534190, Head of Planning and Environment, 
andrew.mullaney@lancashire.gov.uk

Executive Summary

The County Council's Scrutiny Committee has made recommendations following a 
review by a Task Group, formed at the request of CC Liz Oades. 

The Task Group was formed because concerns had been expressed by some 
district councils regarding the scope, content and timeliness of Lancashire County 
Council responses to consultations on planning applications from district councils, 
particularly regarding education, highways and flood risk management.

District Councils were consulted on the draft recommendations, which have been 
subsequently modified following feedback.

This report sets out the response from the Cabinet Member for Environment, 
Planning and Cultural Services to the Committee's recommendations.  Some of the 
recommendations relate to the portfolios of the Cabinet Member for Highways and 
Transport and the Cabinet Member for Children, Young People and Schools.  
Where appropriate, their views have been sought.

Recommendation

The Committee is requested to note the support for all its recommendations from 
Cabinet Member for Environment, Planning and Cultural Services.

Page 51

Agenda Item 6



Background and Advice 

The County Council's Scrutiny Committee has made recommendations following a 
review by a Task Group, formed at the request of County Councillor Liz Oades. 

The Task Group was formed because concerns had been expressed by some 
district councils regarding the scope, content and timeliness of Lancashire County 
Council responses to consultations on planning applications by district councils, 
particularly regarding education, highways and flood risk management.

District Councils were consulted on the draft recommendations, which have been 
subsequently modified following feedback.

This report sets out the response from the Cabinet Member for Environment, 
Planning and Cultural Services to the Committee's recommendations.  Some of the 
recommendations relate to the portfolios of the Cabinet Member for Highways and 
Transport and the Cabinet Member for Children, Young People and Schools.  Where 
appropriate, their views have been sought.

The Committee's recommendations at Appendix 'A' have had input from the following 
functions of the County Council:

• LCC Highways Officers
• LCC Flood Risk Management Officers
• LCC Education Officers
• LCC Planning Officers 
• Lancashire Development Control Officers Group
• Chairs of District Council Planning Committees 
• District Council Planning portfolio holders

The recommendations are supported, and adjustments will be made to operational 
practices to implement them.  Some of the recommendations seek changes to 
district council practices. If achieved, these will help the County Council's highways 
development control team, the County Council's flood risk management team, and 
the school planning team.

Consultations

N/A

Implications: 

The recommendations, if implemented, will improve the quality of planning 
determinations made by district councils.  It will also lead to efficiency improvements 
in the services of the County Council that respond to district council planning 
consultations.

Page 52



Risk management

Not implementing the recommendations will mean the opportunity is lost to improve 
practices and determinations.

There are no direct financial implications.  Implementing the recommendations might 
help to reduce the demand on some County Council services.

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
List of Background Papers

Paper Date Contact/Tel

None

Page 53



Page 54



Appendix A 

Recommendations of the Planning Matters Task Group

Highways

1. County Council process changes should be developed and implemented with a particular focus on 
the following;

i. LCC officers to prepare a summary of the highway advice to the LPA for inclusion in 
reports to the LPA's development control committee. 

ii. LCC officers to send the highways summary to the County Councillor in the electoral 
division containing the proposed development.

iii. LCC officers to consider the use of standard highway conditions when advising LPAs.

2. County Council officers to work closely with District Councils officers to:
i. reduce the number of minor applications upon which highways advice is requested.
ii. strengthen Validation Checklists to reflect the information needs of the Highway 

Authority.
iii. where possible through agreement with the district and applicant, extend determination 

timescales if significant new information is submitted.
iv. provide Standing Advice for smaller applications.

3. Request the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government to seek changes in planning 
legislation to allow for mandatory time extensions if applicants submit substantial new information 
during the determination period.

Education Contributions

Any County Council request for education contributions is included in reports to the LPA development 
control committee.  If absent from the committee report, an explanation is sought from the LPA. 

Flood Risk Management 

1. Offer training to planning officers and all district planning committees to communicate the recent 
changes in flood risk roles for LCC and the Environment Agency within the planning process, and 
commit to continued dialogue over any issues that arise.

2. Encourage all County & District Councillors to report local flooding incidents to LCC Highways 
(using email: highways@lancashire.gov.uk or telephone: 0300-123-6780) for investigation and 
records.

3. Flood Risk Management responses to planning consultations to include a section identifying what 
records the County Council holds about local flooding incidents (if any) and how they relate to the 
proposed development, to assist in bridging perceived gaps between local knowledge and technical 
advice.

Page 41Page 55

mailto:highways@lancashire.gov.uk


Page 42Page 56



Scrutiny Committee

Meeting to be held on 22 July 2016 

Electoral Division affected:
None

Work Plan and Task Group Update
(Appendix 'A' refer)

Contact for further information:
Wendy Broadley, 07825 584684, wendy.broadley@lancashire.gov.uk

Executive Summary

The plan set out at Appendix 'A' summarises the work to be undertaken by the 
Committee in the coming months, including an update on Task Group work. The 
information will be updated and presented to each meeting of the Committee for 
information.

Recommendation

The Committee is asked to approve the 2016/17 work plan.

Background and Advice 

A draft work plan for 2016/17 has been provided at Appendix A indicating areas of 
work for future scrutiny. The Committee is asked to consider and approve the topics 
identified.

Information on the current status of work being undertaken by the Committee and Task 
Groups is presented to each meeting for information.

Consultations

N/A

Implications: 

This item has the following implications, as indicated:

Risk management

There are no significant risk management implications.

Page 57

Agenda Item 7

mailto:wendy.broadley@lancashire.gov.uk


List of Background Papers

Paper Date Contact/Directorate/Tel

N/A

Reason for inclusion in Part II, if appropriate

N/A

Page 58



Scrutiny Committee Draft Work Plan 2016/17 
22.7.16

Date of Cmttee Report Lead Officer Purpose of subject and scrutiny method
22.7.16 Planning Matter 

task group 
report – Cabinet 
Member 
response

Andrew 
Mullaney 

The formal response of the Cabinet Member for Environment, Planning 
& Cultural Services to the recommendations of the Planning Matter 
task group

TAMP Update Karen Cassar Committee to receive an update on the work of the TAMP task group 
including content from Steve Berry, Department for Transport

Highways Phil Durnell Update on the latest position regarding resources, footpaths, highways 
and white lines. To include a summary of the procedure for responses 
to elected members.

23.9.16 Crime & 
Disorder – 
PREVENT

Bob Stott

Adult 
Safeguarding

Jane Booth Report of the LASB

14.10.16 Service 
transformation 
for adults

Tbc by Tony 
Pounder

Picking up from Newton's presentation in June – STPs and the issue of 
working alongside NHS colleagues – following up themes that have 
been identified – Passport to Independence

P
age 59



Overview of the 
process for 
budget scrutiny

tbc Report on how budget scrutiny will be undertaken

18.11.16 Care sector for 
adults

Tbc by Tony 
Pounder

Residential and domiciliary care – viability and sustainability

Pooled Budgets Tbc by Mike 
Kirby

Integrated working – major impact on future ways of working of the 
authority. Possibly use services for adults with LD as the focus

16.12.16 Skills agenda Tbc by 
Louise/Eddie

Equipping people for life and impact on other areas of individuals life 
chances/outlook etc

Summer 2015 
water 
contamination 
report

Drinking 
Water 
Inspectorate

Independent report

13.1.17 Community 
Infrastructure & 
Assets

Tbc by Clare 
Platt

Capacity of communities

10.2.17 Core systems of 
the council

tbc Comparisons with other Las, best practice

P
age 60



17.3.17 Flood & 
Drainage 
Authority – 
effectiveness of 
control

Alan Wilton 
and/or 
Rachel 
Crompton

 Drainage processes
 Flood risk within the planning process
 Regulatory framework
 Partners – UU, EA etc
 Update from officers re grants
 Scrutiny of flood incident reports – outcomes from them

13.4.17 tbc

Future Topics: not yet scheduled
 Bus Services and Subsidies
 Rail Travel – Update on developments since Task Group 
 Property Strategy 
 Commissioning Authority

P
age 61



P
age 62


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Meeting held on 17 June 2016
	4 Transport Asset Management Plan (TAMP) Data Refresh June 2016
	Enc. 1 for Transport Asset Management Plan (TAMP) Data Refresh June 2016

	5 Highways Performance
	6 Response by the Cabinet Member for Environment, Planning and Cultural Services to the recommendations of the Scrutiny Committee's review of Planning Matters
	Recommendations of the Scrutiny Committee- Planning Matters
	7 Report of the Planning Matters Task Group
	Appendix A - Recommendations of the Planning Matters Task Group



	7 Work Plan and Task Group Update
	2016-17 draft work plan App A


